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GOVERNANCE
Workforce Data
UNIT
Employment
Education
Settlement /Asylum Seeker Programs
Social Participation & International
Humanitarian Affairs
Office of CEO
Corporate Support
Operations
Casual and Sessional Staff

CATEGORY
Administration
Other
Administration
Teaching
Administration

NO OF STAFF
2014-15
2015-16
122
143
0
160
169
149
149
255
223

Administration
Administration
Administration
Teaching
Other

Totals

Executive Officers
CLASS

MALE

FEMALE

EO

5 (5)

6 (6)

Total 2015-2016

5 (5)

6 (6)

II

EFT
2014-15
2015-16
116.82
136.53
0
139.05
147.55
123.86
127.54
245.94
213.96

-

10

-

7.6

17
63
16
94
138
2
1,016

9
71
21
99
154
3
1051

15.3
57.54
12.77
38.23
46.03
0.41
795.95

8.1
67.19
16.4
57.07
54.36
0.7
837
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Occupational Health and Safety

Public Employment Information Framework and
Directions

OHS Learning Management System

AMES Australia policies, procedures and processes comply
with the public sector employment principles as per the
Public Administration Act 2004 and Industrial Relations
Victoria Guidelines. AMES Australia employment policies
and procedures are based on the principles of the relevant
employment legislation, merit, the relevant awards,
statutory requirements and best-practice public sector
approaches.

Training sessions and workshops were conducted in the
following areas
• Mental Health First Aid
• Manager’s OH&S
• Professional Assault Response
• Conflict Resolution
• Communicable Diseases Awareness sessions

Disability Action Plan

Crisis Support Teams (CST) operate in all locations.

Throughout 2015-16, the AMES Australia Disability
Consultative Committee continued to meet on a regular
basis to review the ongoing implementation of the Disability
Action Plan. This included the delivery of Disability
Awareness training to managers and employees, the
development of an online Disability Awareness module to be
delivered through myAMES platform and the promotion of
the International Day of People with Disability.

OHS Incidents
185 incidents were reported in 2015-16. Of these incidents,
117 were employee-related. The most commonly reported
incidents related to
• stress due to aggressive / threatening physical or verbal
client behaviour,
• client issues (non work-related or personal health issues)
• slips, trips and falls on AMES Australia premises

AMES Australia maintains a current ‘Diversity at AMES
Australia’ intranet page to provide AMES Australia staff
with an information portal which includes contact
information for Disability Support Groups, information on
AMES Australia Disability Consultative Committee (agendas
and minutes) and an opportunity for staff to provide
feedback or information to the Committee.

Regional OHS Committees
Four new Regional OHS Committees operate within each
region (Northern, Eastern, Western and Central) to enhance
consultation and communication throughout AMES Australia
on occupational health and safety issues. These OHS
Committees meet quarterly.

Lost Time Injury: New Incidents and WorkCover
There were 1,061 Lost Time Injury days (WorkCover) relating
to 10 WorkCover claims during 2015-16.
• One WorkCover claim was lodged in 2016 and was
accepted for limited liability. This claim related to a
psychological injury and the employee has since resigned
from the organisation.
• One WorkCover claim was rejected in 2016.
• There are nine pre-dated 2015 WorkCover claims.
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Occupational Incident and Injury Reporting
2013
Total No. Incidents and injuries reported (employees & clients)
No. Incidents and injuries (employees only)
Lost Time Injuries (LTI) Days (non WorkCover)
Work Cover Claims (Active)
LTI Days (WorkCover)
Total Work Cover cost (lost time and medical expenses)

2014

131
115
69
50
79
22
9
7
1,077
826
$252,837 $266,671

2014-15

2015-16

124
185
59
117
16
1.5
9
10
638
1,061
$341,695 $386,289

Figures are provided by calendar year to 2014 and financial year from 2014-15

Facilities and Accommodation

WorkSafe Visits
The Victorian WorkCover Authority visited three centres in
2016 (March, May and June). Two visits occurred at Noble
Park and Werribee to observe the workplace following
incidents that occurred at the centres. No PINS were issued.

AMES Australia conforms to the building and maintenance
provisions of the Building Code of Australia (BCA) 2013. All
major works requiring building approval have plans
certified; works in progress are inspected and permits issued
by independent building surveyors engaged on a project
basis. AMES Australia requires that all contractors engaged
to carry out works on its behalf are qualified and hold all
necessary permits and insurances. AMES Australia
maintains and also requires its landlords to maintain leased
premises in a safe and secure condition. AMES Australia
ensures all Essential Safety Services are maintained to
regulatory standards and has an ongoing program to ensure
that any alterations or improvements to tenancies meet the
necessary standards to ensure that they are safe and fit for
purpose.

The other visit was to Dandenong in relation to general
housekeeping. An improvement notice was issued and
AMES Australia has undertaken the required actions to
ensure the work condition is safe and without risk to health.
AMES Australia continued to engage a dedicated external
Return to Work (RTW) coordinator throughout 2015-16 to
assist and support injured and long term sick employees to
return to work either on modified or pre-injury duties as
effectively as possible.
AMES Australia also provides a comprehensive health and
wellbeing program, which imbues a pro-active safety culture
within the organisation.

AMES Australia Environmental Policy
AMES Australia seeks to ensure that its activities are
performed in a manner consistent with environmental best
practice. AMES Australia is committed to developing policies
and objectives to minimise its environmental footprint and
to integrating sound environmental values, principles and
practices in day to day operations. AMES Australia aims to
protect and improve the environment by
• adopting environmentally sustainable practices and
performance criteria in all purchasing and procurement
• building environmental sustainability into policies,
programs, regulations, investments and budgets
• reducing resource consumption and waste generation
• striving for AMES Australia major events to be
sustainability friendly
• improving energy efficiency

Industrial Relations
No time was lost to industrial action in the period July 2015
to June 2016.
Three disputes were lodged with the Fair Work Commission
in the period 1 July to 31 December 2015. These matters
related to alleged adverse action, an employee’s
employment status and long service leave for Teachers. Two
matters were resolved in conciliation and the third matter
was resolved separately between the parties.
In October 2015, AMES Australia was able to begin
bargaining with the Community and Public Sector Union
(CPSU) to negotiate a replacement agreement for the Adult
Multicultural Services Administrative Staff Agreement 2011.
Negotiations have been continuing since that time.
State Government also approved the proposed AMES
Australia Teachers Enterprise Agreement 2015. AMES
Australia appointed the Victorian Electoral Commission
(VEC) to conduct a postal ballot for all staff proposed to be
covered by the Teachers’ Agreement, with the ballot closing
on 10 December 2015. The AMES Australia Teachers
Enterprise Agreement 2015 was approved by the Fair Work
Commission on 3 March 2016 and subsequently came into
operation on 10 March 2016.
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Summary of Environmental Performance

Protected Disclosure Act 2012

AMES Australia remains committed to its greening program
with recycling of mobile phones, batteries, shredded paper,
toners, purchasing of carbon neutral paper and encouraging
best Environmental Practices at all centres. AMES Australia
has made a commitment to reducing its environmental
impact by adopting an environment policy, setting key
objectives and targets, developing an environmental
management strategy to achieve goals, monitoring and
reporting achievements.

AMES Australia has appointed a Protected Disclosure
Coordinator and established procedures in accordance with
the Act. Guidelines are applicable to all AMES Australia
personnel.

ENERGY USAGE

2015-16

Electricity (kWh)
Gas (MJ)
Water (kL)

3,291,219
840,249
5,452

Information about protected disclosure is available on the
AMES Australia internet site at ames.net.au/about AMES/
Corporate Documents/Protected Disclosure Policy and
Procedure. The procedure indicates how to make a
disclosure, including contact details for the AMES Australia
Protected Disclosure Coordinator and the Independent
Broad-based Anti-corruption Commission (IBAC).
As at 30 June 2016, AMES Australia had not received any
disclosures under the Act.

Freedom of Information
Five requests were received during the reporting period
under the Freedom of Information Act 1982.

Other Legislative Compliance

AMES Australia has a detailed policy and accompanying
procedures on the application of the Freedom of Information
Act 1982.

Ethical Standards
AMES Australia has adopted the Code of Conduct for
Victorian Public Sector Employees which sets standards
for adherence to the public sector values of the Public
Administration Act 2004. These standards have been
included in all AMES Australia employment contracts
and are binding on all employees.

Enquiries and requests for information should be addressed to
	Freedom of Information Principal Officer
FOI@ames.net.au
Level 4, 1 Little Collins St. Melbourne 3000

Fees and Charges

Internal policies and procedures are established to provide
guidelines aimed at maintaining high ethical standards,
corporate behaviour and accountability within AMES
Australia.

Fees and charges are levied according to the Ministerial
Directions to Adult Education Institutions made pursuant to
the Education and Training Reform Act 2006. No additional
compulsory non-academic fees, subscriptions or charges are
levied on AMES Australia clients within government-funded
programs.

Unacceptable behaviour and serious misconduct in the
workplace that are inconsistent with AMES Australia values,
Code of Conduct and other relevant policies and procedures
are dealt in accordance with AMES Australia Disciplinary /
Performance Policy.

The current fees and charges schedule is available on AMES
Australia internet at ames.net.au/Education and Training/
Course Fee Schedule.

An employee suspecting that a breach has occurred or will
occur is encouraged to report to AMES Australia Ethics Line
using the dedicated hotline number, website, email address
and/or reply paid post.

Major External Review
During the reporting period, no major external reviews were
conducted.

This is an independent hotline service which gives
employees the opportunity to report anonymously. No
employee will be disadvantaged or prejudiced if he or she
reports in good faith.

National Competition Policy
AMES Australia costing models comply with National
Competitive Neutrality principles.

All reports will be acted upon and kept confidential.
	Phone number:
Toll free 1800 899 466
	Website:
www.amesethicsline.deloitte.com.au
	Email address:
amesethicsline@deloitte.com.au
	Reply Paid Post:
AMES Australia Ethics Line Reply Paid 12628
A’Beckett Street Victoria 8006
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Consultancies
There were seven consultancies costing in excess of $10,000 (exclusive of GST) during the reporting period ending 30 June 2016.
The schedule detailed below is a brief summary of the projects involved.

Consultants

Summary of Project

Good Shepherd Microfinance

Consulting services provided for the
development of microfinance in Nauru
Leadership Development Program Planning
Provision of recommendations relating to
the AMES Australia’s Consortium
Assist in the design and facilitation of the
2016 AMES Australia employee survey
Development of tools and resources for
staff in assessing and responding to
suicide risk and self-harm client groups
Facilitate of the development program for
senior managers at AMES Australia
Provision of consulting services in relation
to certification of AMES Australia as an
Employment Provider against the Quality
Assurance Framework (QAF) of the
Department

DDI-Asia/Pacific International Ltd
Nous Group Pty Ltd
Best Practice Australia Pty Ltd
University of South Australia
Yardstick Consulting Pty Ltd
National Employment Services
Association

Expenditure
(ex GST)

Future
Expenditure
(ex GST)

$12,718

-

$15,000
$18,336

-

$39,050

-

$57,600

-

$75,428

-

$86,000

-

Details of these consultancies are available at www.ames.net.au.

Additional Information

During the reporting period, AMES Australia engaged three
consultants where the fee payable to each consultant was
less than $10,000 (exclusive of GST). The total cost of these
project was $19,923.

Consistent with the requirements of the Financial
Management Act 1994, AMES Australia has prepared
material on the following items, where relevant
• major promotional, public relations and marketing
activities undertaken to develop community awareness
• declarations of pecuniary interests
• details of
– changes in prices, fees, charges, rates and levies
– overseas visits taken
– publications produced by AMES Australia and where
such publications can be obtained
• any major research and development activities
undertaken by AMES Australia
• major committees sponsored by AMES Australia, the
purposes of each committee and the extent to which the
purposes have been achieved

Overseas Trips
There were 61 overseas business trips by AMES Australia
employees from July 2015 – June 2016. These were made up
of trips to Israel (1 staff member), Switzerland (4), UK (1),
Germany (2), Austria (1), Sweden (2), Belgium (2), Nauru (46)
and Cambodia (2).
AMES complies with the Victorian Public Sector Travel
Principles.

Details of the above are available on request from:
	AMES Australia General Manager of Stakeholder Relations
AMES Australia GPO Box 4381
Melbourne VIC 3001
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Key Performance Outcomes and Measure 2015-16
Description
and
methodology

Indicator title
Education
Accredited training delivery Accredited
training hours
delivered by
number of
enrolments;
includes VTG, SEE
and AMEP
Ratio of module
completions to
enrolments

Metric

Pre-accredited delivery

Increased student
satisfaction rates

Increased participation in
workplace and industry
experience

Pre-accredited
training hours
delivered by
number of
enrolments
6-monthly student
satisfaction
surveys

Student
Contact
Hours (SCHs)

3m

Module Load
Completion
Rate*

65%

Student
Contact
Hours (SCHs)

48,678**

Level of
Student
Satisfaction

Completions in
Number of
accredited
clients
courses with work
or industry based
experience

Settlement
Refugees receive support
Dept. Social
for their settlement. Asylum Services annual
Seekers referred by the
HSS referrals
Department of Immigration
and Border Protection are
provided with prescribed
support

Employment
Improve Employment
Service Delivery

2015-16
Target

75%

1,120

2015-16 Explanation
Actual of variances
3.19m

Prior year
result
3.23m

90% Strategies
implemented in
mid-2015 aimed
at raising this KPI
31,927 92% of 2015
calendar year
target
75.6% Change to survey
Oct 2015 in 2016 to a more
usable format for
97.18% CALD participants
May 2016
1,070 96% of target

65%

44,993

74.5%

1,253

Smaller class sizes
in vocational
education and
training in
2015-16

Number of
Humanitarian
Settlement
Services
arrivals

Departmental star Average Star
ratings linked to Ratings
relative provider
performance

VII

3,050

>3

3,353 Variance of +303
in line with the
Australian
Government
commitment in
relation to 12,000
additional
humanitarian
places available in
response to the
conflicts in Syria
and Iraq.
Not yet New contract
available

3,681

3
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Description
and
Indicator title
methodology
Research And Evaluation
Build AMES evidence based Research activities
research capability
in reporting
period
Organisational Governance
Financial sustainability
Liquidity available
to meet expenses
as they arise
Surplus before
depreciation and
excluding capital

2015-16
Target

Metric
Number of
research /
evaluation
papers /
surveys
Working
capital ratio
Operating
Surplus

Revenue projection for
2015/16 financial year

Annual turnover

Expenditure to budget
reporting
30 June 2015 Annual Report
submission, including
audited financial statements

Management
reports
Based on ACFE
Governance and
Planning Unit
2015/16 Annual
Report Guidelines
Based on ACFE
Final copy
Governance and
Planning Unit
2015/16 Annual
Report Guidelines

4

4

> 1:1

1.65:1

2.04:1

AMES
$162.9m
Australia
total revenue
Monthly
15th day of
month
Proof copy
29 July
2016

31 August
2016

VIII

Prior year
result

4

$1.59m

NOTES
* Module Load Completion Rate is reported annually by calendar year
** 48,678 hours 2015 calendar year target
*** Figures have been annualised for comparison purposes

2015-16 Explanation
Actual of variances

$5.12m Better than
$7.14m***
expected program
delivery and
efficiencies in
program support
functions
$171.04m
$181.01m***
Met

Met

Met

Met

Met
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Statement of Performance Certificate

IX

AMES Australia

Risk Management and Insurance Attestation
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Income Chart ($000)
Income Chart
($000)
Income
Chart
($000)

$117,556
$117,556

12 months - 2012
12 months - 2012

$191,428
$191,428

12 months - 2013
12 months - 2013

$271,518
$271,518

18 months - 2015
18 months - 2015
12 months - 2016
12 months - 2016

$171,035
$171,035

Working
Capital and
Financial
Results
Table Results Table
Working
Capital
and
Financial
Working Capital
and Financial
Results Table

Working Capital
Working Capital
Current assets
Current assets
Less current liabilities
Less current liabilities
Net working capital
Net working capital
Financial Results
Financial Results
Income from transactions
Income from transactions
Expenses from transactions
Expenses from transactions
Net operating result – profit (loss)
Net operating result – profit (loss)

12 months
12 months
18 months
12 months
12 months
12 months
18 months
12 months
31 December 31 December
30 June
30 June
31 December 31 December
30 June
30 June
2012
2013
2015
2016
2012
2013
2015
2016
$000
$000
$000
$000
$000
$000
$000
$000
41,179
48,826
58,472
58,472
41,179
48,826
58,472
58,472
24,283
28,055
27,811
27,811
24,283
28,055
27,811
27,811
16,896
20,771
30,661
30,661
16,896
20,771
30,661
30,661
117,556
191,428
271,518
171,035
117,556
191,428
271,518
171,035
115,921
188,127
262,604
167,507
115,921
188,127
262,604
167,507
1,635
3,301
8,914
3,528
1,635
3,301
8,914
3,528

Locations
Locations

AMES Head Office
AMES Head Office
1 Little Collins Street, Melbourne.
1 Little Collins Street, Melbourne.
In 2015 -16, AMES Australia delivered a range of education, employment, settlement and community development services
In 2015 -16, AMES Australia delivered a range of education, employment, settlement and community development services
tailored to the needs of individual clients. Services were delivered across Melbourne and in rural and regional Victoria on a
tailored to the needs of individual clients. Services were delivered across Melbourne and in rural and regional Victoria on a
sub contract basis in partnership with other providers. From July 2015, AMES Australia also delivered employment services
sub contract basis in partnership with other providers. From July 2015, AMES Australia also delivered employment services
in Sydney.
in Sydney.
For current locations and contact details visit www.ames.net.au
For current locations and contact details visit www.ames.net.au
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DISCLOSURE INDEX
Key to abbreviations
AR =
GFR =
FRD =
SD =
Item
No.

Annual Report 2015-16
Governance and Financial Report 2015-16
Financial Reporting Directions (as at August 2015)
Standing Directions (as at May 2015)
Source

SUMMARY OF REPORTING REQUIREMENT

Page
number

Report of operations
Charter and purpose
1
FRD 22G
2
FRD 22G

Manner of establishment and the relevant Minister
Purpose, functions, powers and duties linked to a summary of activities,
programs and achievements
3
FRD 22G
Nature and range of services provided including communities served
Management and Structure
4
FRD 22G
Organisational structure and chart, including responsibilities
5
FRD 22G
Names of Board members
Financial and Other Information
6
FRD 03A
Accounting for Dividends
7
FRD 07B
Early adoption of authoritative accounting pronouncements
8
FRD 10A
Disclosure Index
9
FRD 17B
Long Service leave and annual leave for employees
10
FRD 20A
Accounting for State motor vehicle lease arrangements prior to 1 Feb 2004
11
FRD 22G
Operational and budgetary objectives, performance against objectives and
achievements
12
FRD 22G
Occupational health and safety statement including performance indicators,
performance against those indicators. Reporting must be on the items listed
at (a) to (e) in the FRD
13
FRD 22G
Workforce data for current and previous reporting period including a
statement on employment and conduct principles and that employees have
been correctly classified in the workforce data collections
14
FRD 22G
Summary of the financial results for the year including previous 4 year
comparisons
15
FRD 22G
Significant changes in financial position
16
FRD 22G
Key initiatives and projects, including significant changes in key initiatives
and projects from previous years and expectations for the future
17
FRD 22G
Post-balance sheet date events likely to significantly affect subsequent
reporting periods
18
FRD 22G
Summary of application and operation of the Freedom of Information Act
1982
19
FRD 22G
Discussion and analysis of operating results and financial results
20

FRD 22G

Significant factors affecting performance

21

FRD 22G

Where a TAFE has a workforce inclusion policy, a measurable target and
report on the progress towards the target should be included

XII

AR 32
AR 1-35
AR 1-27
AR 34
AR 32
GFR 32
GFR 12, 24
GFR 20
GFR XII-XV
GFR 18, 29
N/A
GFR VII-VIII
AR 2-27
GFR III-V
AR 30 & 32
GFR II-III
GFR XI
N/A
AR 5
GFR 10 & 31
GFR V
GFR 1-39
AR 35
GFR 5-7
AR 35
N/A
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Item
No.
22
23
24
25
26
27

Source

SUMMARY OF REPORTING REQUIREMENT

FRD 22G

Schedule of any government advertising campaign in excess of $150,000 or
greater (exclusive of GST) include list from (a) – (d) in the FRD
FRD 22G
Statement of compliance with building and maintenance provisions of the
Building Act 1993
FRD 22G
Statement, where applicable, on the implementation and compliance with
the National Competition Policy
FRD 22G
Summary of application and operation of the Protected Disclosure Act 2012
FRD 22G and FRD Summary of Environmental Performance including a report on office based
24C
environmental impacts
FRD 22G
Consultants:
Report of Operations must include a statement disclosing each of the
following
1. Total number of consultancies of $10,000 or more (excluding GST)
2.	Location (eg website) of where details of these consultancies over $10,000
have been made publicly available
3.	Total number of consultancies individually valued at less than $10,000
and the total expenditure for the reporting period

28

FRD 22G

29

FRD 22G

30
31

FRD 25B
FRD 26A

32

FRD 29A

33

SD 4.5.5(a)

34

SD 4.2(g)

35

SD 4.2(h)

36

SD 4.2(j)

37
38

CG 10 (clause 27)
CG 12 (clause 33)

AND for each consultancy more than $10,000, a schedule is to be published
on the AEI website listing:
• Consultant engaged
• Brief summary of project
• Total project fees approved (excluding GST)
• Expenditure for reporting period (excluding GST)
• Any future expenditure committed to the consultant for the project
Statement, to the extent applicable, on the application and operation of the
Carers Recognition Act 2012 (Carers Act), and the actions that were taken
during the year to comply with the Carers Act
List of other information available on request from the Accountable Officer,
and which must be retained by the Accountable Officer (refer to list at (a)
– (l) in the FRD)
Victorian Industry Participation Policy Disclosures
Accounting for VicFleet motor vehicle lease arrangements on or after 1
February 2004
Workforce Data Disclosures on the public service employee workforce.
Provide an attestation that risk identification and management is consistent
with AS/NZS ISO31000:2009 or equivalent
Qualitative and Quantitative information to be included in Report of
Operations, and provide general information about the entity and its
activities, together with highlights and future initiatives
The Report of Operations must be prepared in accordance with
requirements of the relevant Financial Reporting Directions
The Report of Operations must be signed and dated by a member of the
Responsible Body
Major Commercial Activities
Controlled Entities

XIII

Page
number
N/A
GFR IV
GFR V
GFR V
GFR IV - V
GFR VII

N/A
GFR VI
N/A
N/A
GFR II
AR 30
GFR X
AR 2-35
GFR IX, 3
GFR IX
N/A
N/A
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Item
No.

Source

SUMMARY OF REPORTING REQUIREMENT

Page
number

Financial Report
Financial statements required under part 7 of the Financial Management Act 1984
39
SD 4.2(a)
The financial statements must be prepared in accordance with:
• Australian accounting standards (AAS and AASB standards) and other
mandatory professional reporting requirements (including urgent issues
group consensus views);
• Financial Reporting Directions; and
• business rules.
40

SD 4.2(b)

The financial statements are to comprise the following:
• income statement;
• balance sheet;
• statement of recognised income and expense;
• cash flows statement; and
• notes to the financial statements.

GFR IX,
3&9
GFR IX, 3 & 9
GFR IX & 9
GFR 4
GFR 5
GFR 24 & 25
GFR 7
GFR 8-39

Other requirements under Standing Direction 4.2 / Financial Management Act 1994 (FMA)
41
SD 4.2(c) and
The financial statements must contain such information as required by the
Minister and be prepared in a manner and form approved by the Minister.
FMA s 49
They must be signed and dated by the Accountable Officer, CFAO and a
member of the Responsible Body, in a manner approved by the Minister,
stating whether, in their opinion:
• the financial statements present fairly the financial transactions during
GFR 1-3
the reporting period and the financial position at the end of the period;
• the financial statements are prepared in accordance with this direction
GFR 1-3
and applicable Financial Reporting Directions; and
• the financial statements comply with applicable Australian accounting
GFR 1-3
standards (AAS and AASB standards) and other mandatory professional
reporting requirements (including urgent issues group consensus views).
42
SD 4.2(d)
Rounding of amounts
GFR 20
43
SD 4.2(e)
Review and recommendation by Audit Committee or responsible body prior GFR 1-3
to finalisation and submission
Other requirements as per Financial Reporting Directions in Notes to the Financial Statements
44
FRD 11A
Disclosure of ex-gratia payments
GFR 39
45
FRD 21B
Disclosures of Responsible Persons, Executive Officer and Other Personnel
GFR 32-33
(Contractors with significant management responsibilities) in the Financial
Report
46
FRD 102
Inventories
GFR 16 & 26
47
FRD 103F
Non-financial physical assets
GFR 16-17,
27-28
48
FRD 104
Foreign currency
GFR 20
49
FRD 105A
Borrowing costs
N/A
49
FRD 106
Impairment of assets
GFR 13
50
FRD 107A
Investment properties
N/A
51
FRD 109
Intangible assets
GFR 13-14
52
FRD 110
Cash flow statements
GFR 7 & 30
53
FRD 112D
Defined benefit superannuation obligations
GFR 12 & 31
54
FRD 113A
Investment in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates
N/A
55
FRD 114A
Financial instruments – general government entities and public non-financial GFR 34-39
corporations
56
FRD 119A
Transfers through contributed capital
GFR 5 & 6
57
FRD 120I
Accounting and reporting pronouncements applicable to the reporting
GFR 20-23
period
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Item
Source
SUMMARY OF REPORTING REQUIREMENT
No.
Compliance with other Legislation, Subordinate Instruments and Policies
58
Legislation
The AEI Annual Report must contain a statement that it complies with all
relevant legislation, and subordinate instruments, (and which should be
listed in the Report) including, but not limited to, the following:
• Education and Training Reform Act 2006 (ETRA)
• AMES Australia constitution
• Directions of the Minister for Training and Skills (or predecessors)
• AEI Commercial Guidelines
• Strategic Planning Guidelines
• Public Administration Act 2004
• Financial Management Act 1994
• Freedom of Information Act 1982
• Building Act 1983
• Protected Disclosure Act 2012
• Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2003
59
ETRA s3.2.8
Statement about compulsory non-academic fees, subscriptions and charges
payable in 2015
60
Policy
Statement that AMES Australia complies with the Victorian Public Sector
Travel Principles
61
Key Performance See table on page 6 of the guidelines for required formatting.
Indicators
Institutes to report against:
• KPIs set out in the annual Statement of Corporate Intent
Overseas Operations
62
PAEC and VAGO • Financial and other information on initiatives taken or strategies relating
(June 2003
to the institute’s overseas operations
Special Review
• Nature of strategic and operational risks for overseas operations
item 3.110)
• Strategies established to manage such risks of overseas operations
• Performance measures and targets formulated for overseas operations
• The extent to which expected outcomes for overseas operations have been
achieved.

XV

Page
number
GFR III-IX &
1-3

GFR V
GFR VI
GFR VII-VIII

GFR 31
AR 2 & 10

Section B
AMES Australia
(formerly Adult Multicultural Education Services)
Annual Financial Report
For the year ended 30 June 2016

Contents

Page
1-2
3
4
5
6
7
8-39

Independent Auditor's Report
Declaration
Comprehensive Operating Statement
Balance sheet
Statement of changes in equity
Cash flow statement
Notes to the financial statements

The financial report was authorised for issue by the Board members on 22 August 2016. AMES Australia has the power to
amend and reissue the financial report.
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AMES AUSTRALIA

(formerly Adult Multicultural Education Services)
Comprehensive Operating Statement
For the financial year ended 30 June 2016

Income from transactions
Government contributions - operating
Sale of goods and services
Interest
Other income
Total income from transactions
Expenses from transactions
Employee expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Supplies and services
Other operating expenses
Total expenses from transactions

Note

2016
$000

18 months
2015
$000

2(a)(i)
2(b)
2(c)
2(d)

3,856
164,449
695
2,035
171,035

5,503
262,859
1,453
1,703
271,518

3(a)
3(b)
3(c)
3(d)

75,912
1,595
62,601
26,975
167,083

95,703
1,796
96,775
67,685
261,959

3,952

9,559

(65)
(359)
(424)

(106)
(539)
(645)

3,528

8,914

Net result from transactions (net operating balance)
Other economic flows included in net result
Net gain / (loss) on non-financial assets
Other gains / (losses) from other economic flows
Total other economic flows included in net result

4(a)
4(b)

Net result
Other economic flows – other comprehensive income

-

Comprehensive result

3,528

8,914

The above comprehensive operating statement should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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AMES AUSTRALIA

(formerly Adult Multicultural Education Services)
Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2016
Note

2016
$000

2015
$000

5, 24
7, 24
6, 24

9,824
21,112
24,000

11,020
20,780
26,000

54,936

57,800

86
781
22,545

81
591
10,185

Total non-financial assets

23,412

10,857

Total assets

78,348

68,657

19,247
3,965
12,502

17,929
888
10,734

Total liabilities

35,714

29,551

Net assets

42,634

39,106

17,211
2,517
22,906

13,683
2,517
22,906

42,634

39,106

Assets
Financial assets
Cash and deposits
Receivables
Investment and other financial assets
Total financial assets
Non-financial assets
Inventories
Other non-financial assets
Property, plant and equipment

8
9
10

Liabilities
Payables
Other Liabilities
Provisions

11
12
13

Equity
Accumulated surplus / (deficit)
Reserves
Contributed capital

14

Net worth

Commitments for expenditure

16

5,450

11,242

Contingent assets

17

-

-

Contingent liabilities

17

1,000

1,000

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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AMES AUSTRALIA

(formerly Adult Multicultural Education Services)
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the financial year ended 30 June 2016

Accumulated
surplus/(deficit)

Reserves

Note
At 1 January 2014
Net result for the period

$'000

$'000

$'000

2,517

4,769

22,906

30,192

2,517

Net result for the year

-

Year ended 30 June 2016

Total

$'000
-

Period ended 30 June 2015

Contributed
capital

2,517

8,914
13,683

22,906

3,528
17,211

22,906

8,914
39,106
3,528
42,634

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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AMES AUSTRALIA

(formerly Adult Multicultural Education Services)
Cash Flow Statement
For the financial year ended 30 June 2016

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Government contributions - operating
User fees and charges received
Interest received
Dividend received
Total receipts

Note

2016
$000

18 months
2015
$000

2(a)(i)

3,856
185,766
728
190,350

6,053
273,829
1,456
5
281,343

(171,447)
(8,079)
(179,526)

(262,027)
(16,363)
(278,390)

10,824

2,953

(16,400)
18,400
(14,136)
116
(12,020)

(9,000)
(1,596)
140
(10,456)

(1,196)
11,020

(7,503)
18,523

9,824

11,020

2(d)

Payments
Payments to suppliers and employees
Net goods and services tax paid to the ATO
Total payments
Net cash flows from / (used in) operating activities

15(d)

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for investments
Proceeds from investments
Purchase of non-financial assets
Proceeds from sales of non-financial assets
Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities

4(a)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year/period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year/period

5

The above cash flow statement should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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AMES AUSTRALIA

(formerly Adult Multicultural Education Services)

Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2016
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AMES AUSTRALIA

(formerly Adult Multicultural Education Services)

Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2016

1 Summary of significant accounting policies
The annual financial statements represent the audited general purpose financial statements and notes for AMES
Australia. The change of name from Adult Multicultural Education Services to AMES Australia came into effect
on 20th August 2015 as published in the Victoria Government Gazette.
The accounting policies set out below have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2016 and the comparative information presented for the 18 month period ended 30 June 2015.
The following is a summary of the material accounting policies adopted by AMES Australia in the preparation of
the financial report. The accounting policies have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

1.01

Statement of compliance

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Financial
Management Act 1994 (FMA) and applicable Australian Accounting Standards (AAS) which include
Interpretations, issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB). In particular, they are
presented in a manner consistent with the requirements of the AASB 1049 Whole of Government and
General Government Sector Financial Reporting.
Where appropriate, those AAS paragraphs applicable to not-for-profit (NFP) entities have been applied.
Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial
information satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the
underlying transactions or other events is reported.

1.02

Basis of accounting preparation and measurement

The accrual basis of accounting has been applied in the preparation of these financial statements
whereby assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses are recognised in the reporting period to which
they relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid.
These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, the functional and presentation currency
of AMES Australia, and have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention. Historical
cost is based on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange for assets.
Exceptions to the historical cost convention include:
• non-financial physical assets which, subsequent to acquisition, are measured at a revalued
amount being their fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent impairment losses. Revaluations are made with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amounts do not materially differ from their fair values;
• the fair value of an asset other than land is generally based on its depreciated replacement
value; and
• available-for-sale investments which are measured at fair value with movements reflected in
'other economic flows - other comprehensive income'.
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AMES AUSTRALIA

(formerly Adult Multicultural Education Services)

Notes to the financial statements (cont.)
30 June 2016

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont.)
1.02

Basis of accounting preparation and measurement (cont.)
Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on professional judgements derived from historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.
The estimates and associated assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and also in future periods that
are affected by the revision.

Fair value measurement

Consistent with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement , AMES Australia determines the policies and
procedures for both recurring fair value measurements such as property, plant and equipment, and
financial instruments and for non-recurring fair value measurements such as non-financial physical
assets held for sale, in accordance with the requirements of AASB 13 and the relevant Financial
Reporting Directions.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
• Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
• Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and
• Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, AMES Australia has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the
fair value hierarchy as explained above.
In addition, AMES Australia determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
The Valuer General Victoria (VGV) is AMES Australia's independent valuation agency.
AMES Australia in conjunction with VGV, monitors changes in the fair value of each asset and liability
through relevant data sources to determine whether revaluation is required.

1.03

Reporting entity

The financial statements cover AMES Australia as an individual reporting entity. AMES Australia is an
autonomous Adult Education Institution, accountable to the Victorian Minister for Training and Skills. It
is governed by a Board established under the Education and Training Reform Act 2006.
Its principal address is:
AMES Australia
Level 4, 1 Little Collins Street
Melbourne VIC 3000

1.04

Events after reporting date

Assets, liabilities, income or expenses arise from past transactions or other past events. Where the
transactions result from an agreement between AMES Australia and other parties, the transactions are
only recognised when the agreement is irrevocable at or before balance date. Adjustments are made to
amounts recognised in the financial statements for events which occur after the reporting date and
before the date the statements are authorised for issue, where those events provide information about
conditions which existed at the reporting date. Note disclosure is made about events between the
reporting date and the date the statements are authorised for issue where the events relate to
conditions which arose after the reporting date and are considered to be of material interest.
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AMES AUSTRALIA

(formerly Adult Multicultural Education Services)

Notes to the financial statements (cont.)
30 June 2016

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont.)
1.05

Scope and presentation of financial statements
Comprehensive Operating Statement
The comprehensive operating statement comprises three components, being ‘net result from
transactions’ (or termed as ‘net operating balance’), ‘other economic flows included in net result’, as well
as ‘other economic flows – other comprehensive income’. The sum of the former two, together with the
net result from discontinued operations, represents the net result.
The net result is equivalent to profit or loss derived in accordance with AASs.
‘Other economic flows’ are changes arising from market re-measurements. They include:
• gains and losses from disposals of non financial assets;
• revaluations and impairments of non financial physical and intangible assets;
Balance sheet
Assets and liabilities are presented in liquidity order with assets aggregated into financial assets and non
financial assets.
Current and non-current assets and liabilities are disclosed in the notes, where relevant. In general, noncurrent assets or liabilities are expected to be recovered or settled more than 12 months after the
reporting period, except for the provisions of employee benefits, which are classified as current liabilities
if AMES Australia does not have the unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liabilities within 12
months after the end of the reporting period.
Cash flow statement
Cash flows are classified according to whether or not they arise from operating, investing, or financing
activities. This classification is consistent with requirements under AASB 107 Statement of Cash Flows.
For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts,
which are included as current borrowings on the balance sheet.
Statement of changes in equity
The statement of changes in equity presents reconciliations of non-owner and owner changes in equity
from opening balances at the beginning of the reporting period to the closing balances at the end of the
reporting period. It also shows separately changes due to amounts recognised in the ‘Comprehensive
result’ and amounts related to ‘Transactions with owner in its capacity as owner’.

1.06

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST
incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net
amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included with other receivables
or payables in the balance sheet.
Cash flows are included in the cash flow statement on a gross basis. The GST component of cash
flows arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority are presented as operating cash flow.
Commitments and contingent assets or liabilities are presented on a gross basis.

1.07

Income from transactions

Income is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity
and the income can be reliably measured at fair value. Amounts disclosed as income are, where
applicable, net of returns, allowances and duties and taxes. Revenue is recognised for each of AMES
Australia's major activities as follows:
Government contributions
Government contributions are recognised as revenue in the period when AMES Australia gains control
of the contributions. Control is recognised upon receipt or notification by relevant authorities of the right
to receive a contribution for the current year.
Sale of goods and services
(i) Fee for service
Fee for service revenue is recognised by reference to the percentage completion of each contract, i.e. in
the reporting period in which the services are rendered. Where fee for service revenue of a reciprocal
nature has been clearly received in respect of programs or services to be delivered in the following year,
such amounts are disclosed as Revenue in Advance.
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AMES AUSTRALIA

(formerly Adult Multicultural Education Services)

Notes to the financial statements (cont.)
30 June 2016

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont.)
1.07

Income from transactions (cont.)
(ii) Student fees and charges
Student fees and charges revenue is recognised by reference to the percentage of services provided.
Where student fees and charges revenue has been clearly received in respect of courses or programs
to be delivered in the following period, any non-refundable portion of the fees is treated as revenue in
the period of receipt and the balance as Revenue in Advance.
(iii) Revenue from sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised by AMES Australia when:
(a) the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have transferred to the buyer;
(b) AMES Australia retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;
(c) the amount of revenue can be reliably measured;
(d) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to AMES
Australia and;
(e) the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
Interest
Interest income includes interest received on bank term deposits and other investments and the
unwinding over time of the discount on financial assets. Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method which allocates the interest over the relevant period.
Other income
(i) Dividend revenue
Dividend is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
(ii) Rental revenue
Rental revenue is recognised on a time proportional basis and is brought to account when AMES
Australia's right to receive the rental is established.
Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration
Contributions of resources received free of charge or for nominal consideration are recognised at their
fair value when the transferee obtains control over them, irrespective of whether restrictions or
conditions are imposed over the use of the contributions. Contributions in the form of services are only
recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services would have been purchased if
not received as a donation.

1.08

Expenses from transactions

Expenses from transactions are recognised as they are incurred, and reported in the period to which
they relate.
Employee expenses
Expenses for employee benefits are recognised when incurred, except for contributions in respect of
defined benefit plans.
Retirement benefit obligations
(i) Defined contribution plan
Contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed when they become payable.
(ii) Defined benefit plans
The amount charged to the statement of comprehensive income in respect of superannuation
represents the contributions made by AMES Australia to the superannuation plan in respect of current
services of current AMES Australia staff. Superannuation contributions are made to the plans based on
the relevant rules of each plan.
AMES Australia does not recognise any deferred liability in respect of the plan(s) because AMES
Australia has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future benefits relating to its employees; its only
obligation is to pay superannuation contributions as and when they fall due. The Department of Treasury
and Finance recognises and discloses the State's defined benefit liabilities in its finance report.
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AMES AUSTRALIA

(formerly Adult Multicultural Education Services)

Notes to the financial statements (cont.)
30 June 2016

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont.)
1.08

Expenses from transactions (cont.)
Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation is provided on property, plant and equipment, including freehold buildings, with a
capitalised cost in excess of $5,000 (2015, $5,000). Depreciation is generally calculated on a straightline basis so as to write off the net cost or other revalued amount of each asset over its expected useful
life to its estimated residual value. Leasehold improvements are amortised over the estimated useful
life of the improvements using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period.
Depreciation methods and rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:
Class of asset

Method

Rate/Rates

Buildings
Leasehold improvements:
· Long Term Lease - fit outs
· Other Lease - fit outs
Motor vehicles
Plant & equipment
Computer equipment

Straight line
Straight line

2.0% - 12.50%
6.67% - 7.50%
17.45% - 27.25%
20.0%
6.67% - 20.0%
20.0% - 33.3%

Straight line
Straight line
Straight line

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate on an annual
basis. There has been no change in the methodology and no major change in the rates for the reporting
period.
Interest expense
Interest expense is recognised in the period in which it is incurred.
Supplies and services
Supplies and services expenses are recognised as an expense in the reporting period in which they are
incurred.
Fair value of assets and services provided free of charge or for nominal consideration
Resources provided free of charge or for nominal consideration are recognised at their fair value when
AMES Australia obtains control over them, irrespective of whether these contributions are subject to
restrictions or conditions over their use. Contributions in the form of services are only recognised when a
fair value can be reliably determined and the services would have been purchased if not received as a
donation.

1.09

Other economic flows included in net result

Other economic flows measure the change in volume or value of assets or liabilities that do not result
from transactions.
Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets
Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets and liabilities includes realised and unrealised gains and losses
from revaluations, impairments, and disposals of all physical assets and intangible assets.
Disposal of non-financial assets
Any gain or loss on disposal of non-financial assets is recognised at the date control of the asset is
passed to the buyer and is determined after deducting from the proceeds the carrying value of the asset
at the time.
Impairment of non-financial assets
The recoverable amount for most assets is measured at the higher of depreciated replacement cost and
fair value less costs to sell. Recoverable amount for assets held primarily to generate net cash flows is
measured at the higher of the present value of future cash flows expected to be obtained from the asset
and fair value less costs to sell. It is deemed that, in the event of the loss of an asset, the future
economic benefits arising from the use of the asset will be replaced unless a specific decision to the
contrary has been made.
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments includes realised and unrealised gains and losses from
revaluations of financial instruments that are designated at fair value through profit or loss or held-fortrading, impairment and reversal of impairment for financial instruments at amortised cost, and disposals
of financial assets.
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AMES AUSTRALIA

(formerly Adult Multicultural Education Services)

Notes to the financial statements (cont.)
30 June 2016

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont.)
1.09

Other economic flows included in net result (cont.)
Revaluations of financial instruments at fair value
The revaluation gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value excludes dividends or interest earned
on financial assets, which is reported as part of income from transactions.
Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets have been assessed for impairment in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards.
Bad and doubtful debts are assessed on a regular basis. Those bad debts considered as written off by
mutual consent are classified as a transaction expense. The allowance for doubtful receivables and bad
debts not written off by mutual consent are adjusted as ‘other economic flows’.
Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows
Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows include the gains or losses from reclassifications of
amounts from reserves and/or accumulated surplus to net result, and from the revaluation of the present
value of the long service leave liability due to changes in the bond interest rates.

1.10

Financial instruments

Financial instruments arise out of contractual agreements that give rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Categories of non-derivative financial instruments
(i) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
Financial assets are categorised as fair value through profit or loss at trade date if they are classified as
held-for-trading or designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial instrument assets are
designated at fair value through profit or loss on the basis that the financial assets form part of a group
of financial assets that are managed by the entity based on their fair values, and have their performance
evaluated in accordance with documented risk management and investment strategies.
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value and
attributable transaction costs are expensed as incurred. Subsequently, any changes in fair value are
recognised in the net result as other economic flows. Any dividend or interest on a financial asset is
recognised in the net result from transactions.
(ii) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are financial instrument assets with fixed and determinable payments that are
not quoted on an active market. These assets are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial measurement, loans and receivables are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.
Loans and receivables category includes cash and deposits (refer to Note 1.11), term deposits with
maturity greater than three months, trade receivables, loans and other receivables, but not statutory
receivables.
(iii) Held-to-maturity investments
AMES Australia has no financial instruments under this category.
(iv) Available-for-sale financial assets
AMES Australia has no financial instruments under this category.
(v) Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial instrument liabilities are initially recognised on the date they are originated. They are initially
measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
these financial instruments are measured at amortised cost with any difference between the initial
recognised amount and the redemption value being recognised in profit and loss over the period of the
interest-bearing liability, using the effective interest rate method.
Financial instrument liabilities measured at amortised cost include all of AMES Australia's contractual
payables, advances received and interest-bearing arrangements other than those designated at fair
value through profit or loss.
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AMES AUSTRALIA

(formerly Adult Multicultural Education Services)

Notes to the financial statements (cont.)
30 June 2016

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont.)
1.11

Financial assets

Cash and deposits
Cash and deposits, including cash equivalents, comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, deposits at
call and those highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are held
for the purpose of meeting short term cash commitments rather than for investment purposes, and
which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.
Receivables
Receivables consist predominantly of contractual debtors in relation to goods and services and accrued
investment income.
Receivables consist of:
• statutory receivables, which include predominantly amounts owing from the Victorian Government
and GST input tax credits recoverable; and
• contractual receivables, which include debtors in relation to goods and services, loans to third
parties, accrued investment income
Receivables that are contractual are classified as financial instruments and categorised as loans and
receivables. Statutory receivables are recognised and measured similarly to contractual receivables
(except for impairment) but are not classified as financial instruments because they do not arise from a
contract.
A provision for doubtful debts is made when there is an objective evidence that the debts will not be
collected. Bad debts are written off when identified.
Investments and other financial assets
Investments are classified in the following categories:
• financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;
• loans and receivables;
• held to maturity investments; and
• available-for-sale financial assets
The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition.
Any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset is recognised in the comprehensive operating
statement as a transaction.
Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:
• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
• AMES Australia retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’
arrangement; or
• AMES Australia has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either:
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.
Where AMES Australia has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards or
transferred control, the asset is recognised to the extent of the organisation's continuing involvement in
the asset.
Impairment of financial assets
At the end of each reporting period, AMES Australia assesses whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. Objective evidence includes financial difficulties
of the debtor, default payments, debts which are more than 90 days overdue, and changes in debtor
credit ratings. All financial instrument assets, except those measured at fair value through profit or loss,
are subject to annual review for impairment.
Receivables are assessed for bad and doubtful debts on a regular basis. Those bad debts considered
as written off by mutual consent are classified as a transaction expense. Bad debts not written off by
mutual consent and the allowance for doubtful receivables are classified as other economic flows in the
net result.
The amount of the allowance is the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.
In assessing impairment of statutory (non-contractual) financial assets, which are not financial
instruments, professional judgement is applied in assessing materiality using estimates, averages and
other computational methods in accordance with AASB 136 Impairment of Assets .
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AMES AUSTRALIA

(formerly Adult Multicultural Education Services)

Notes to the financial statements (cont.)
30 June 2016

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont.)
1.12

Leases

A lease is a right to use an asset for an agreed period of time in exchange for payment.
Leases are classified at their inception as either operating or finance leases based on the economic
substance of the agreement so as to reflect the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
Operating leases
AMES Australia as lessee
Operating lease payments, including any contingent rentals, are recognised as an expense in the
comprehensive operating statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the benefits derived from the use of the
leased asset. The leased asset is not recognised in the balance sheet.
The cost of leasehold improvements is capitalised as an asset and amortised in accordance with the
depreciation policy stated in Note 1.08.
All incentives for the agreement of a new or renewed operating lease are recognised as an integral part
of the net consideration agreed for the use of the leased asset, irrespective of the incentive’s nature or
form or the timing of payments.

1.13

Non-financial assets

Inventories
Inventories include goods and other property held either for sale or for distribution at a zero or nominal
cost, or for consumption in the ordinary course of business operations.
Inventories held-for-distribution are measured at cost, adjusted for any loss of service potential. All other
inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Where inventories are acquired
for no cost or nominal consideration, they are measured at current replacement cost at the date of
acquisition.
Cost, includes an appropriate portion of fixed and variable overhead expenses. Cost is assigned to other
high value, low volume inventory items on a specific identification of cost basis. Cost for all other
inventory is measured on the basis of weighted average cost.
The basis used in assessing loss of service potential for inventories held-for-distribution include current
replacement cost and technical or functional obsolescence. Technical obsolescence occurs when an
item still functions for some or all of the tasks it was originally acquired to do, but no longer matches
existing technologies. Functional obsolescence occurs when an item no longer functions the way it did
when it was first acquired.
Property, plant and equipment
All non-financial physical assets, are measured initially at cost and subsequently revalued at fair value
less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Where an asset is received for no or nominal
consideration, the cost is the asset’s fair value at the date of acquisition.
The initial cost for non-financial physical assets under a finance lease is measured at amounts equal to
the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, each
determined at the inception of the lease.
Buildings
Buildings are shown initially at cost, then subsequently at their fair value.
Leasehold improvements
Leasehold improvements are initially measured at cost, then subsequently at their fair value less
depreciation (refer to Note 1.08).
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AMES AUSTRALIA

(formerly Adult Multicultural Education Services)

Notes to the financial statements (cont.)
30 June 2016

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont.)
1.13

Non-financial assets (cont.)
Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are initially measured at cost, then subsequently at their fair value less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by AMES Australia to ensure it is not
in excess of the recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the
basis of the expected net cash flows that will be received from the assets' employment and subsequent
disposal. The expected net cash flows have been discounted to their present values in determining
recoverable amounts.
The cost of constructed non-financial physical assets includes the cost of all materials used in
construction, direct labour on the project and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overheads.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
AMES Australia and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The cost of all other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the comprehensive operating statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.
Revaluations of non-current physical assets
Non-current physical assets measured at fair value are revalued in accordance with Financial Reporting
Directions (FRDs) issued by the Minister for Finance. All full revaluation normally occurs every five
years, based upon the asset’s government purpose classification, but may occur more frequently if fair
value assessments indicate material changes in values. Independent valuers are generally used to
conduct these scheduled revaluations. Revaluation increases or decreases arise from differences
between an asset’s carrying value and fair value.
Revaluation increases are credited directly to equity in the revaluation reserve, except to the extent that
an increase reverses a revaluation decrease in respect of that class of property, plant and equipment,
previously recognised as an expense (other economic flows) in the net result, the increase is recognised
as income (other economic flows) in determining the net result.
Revaluation decreases are recognised immediately as expenses (other economic flows) in the net
result, except to the extent that a credit balance exists in the revaluation reserve in respect of the same
class of property, plant and equipment, they are debited to the revaluation reserve.
Revaluation increases and revaluation decreases relating to individual assets within a class of property,
plant and equipment are offset against one another within that class but are not offset in respect of
assets in different classes.
When revalued assets are sold, it is AMES Australia's policy to transfer the amounts included in other
reserves in respect of these assets to accumulated funds.
Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount
of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.
Prepayments
Prepayments represent payments in advance of receipt of goods and services or that part of
expenditure made in one accounting period covering a term extending beyond that period.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont.)
1.14

Liabilities

Payables
Payables consist of:
• contractual payables, such as accounts payable, and unearned income including deferred income
from concession arrangements. Accounts payable represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to AMES Australia prior to the end of the financial period that are unpaid, and arise when
AMES Australia becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of those goods
and services; and
• statutory payables, such as goods and services tax and fringe benefits tax payables.
Contractual payables are classified as financial instruments and categorised as financial liabilities at
amortised cost. Statutory payables are recognised and measured similarly to contractual payables, but
are not classified as financial instruments and not included in the category of financial liabilities at
amortised cost, because they do not arise from a contract.
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when AMES Australia has a present obligation, the future sacrifice of
economic benefits is probable, and the amount of the provision can be measured reliably.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.
Employee benefits
Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and
long service leave for services rendered to the reporting date.
(i) Wages and salaries and annual leave
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits annual leave are all recognised in the
provision for employee benefits as 'current liabilities', because AMES Australia does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlements of these liabilities.
Depending on the expectation of the timing of settlement, liabilities for wages and salaries, and annual
leave are measured at:
• undiscounted value - if AMES Australia expects to wholly settle within 12 months; or
• present value - if AMES Australia does not expect to wholly settle within 12 months.
(ii) Long service leave
Liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits.
Unconditional LSL is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements as a current liability, even when
AMES Australia does not expect to settle the liability within 12 months because it will not have the
unconditional right to defer settlement of the entitlement should an employee take leave within 12
months.
The components of the current LSL liability are measured at :
• nominal value (undiscounted value) - component that is expected to be wholly settled within 12
months; and
• present value (discounted value) - component that is not expected to be wholly settled within 12
months.
Conditional LSL is disclosed as non-current liability. There is an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the entitlement until the employee has completed the requisite years of service. This non-current LSL
liability is measured at present value.
Any gain or loss following revaluation of the present value of non-current LSL liability is recognised as a
transaction, except to the extent that a gain or loss arises due to changes in bond interest for which it is
then recognised as an other economic flow (refer to Note 4(b)).
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont.)
1.14

Liabilities (cont.)
(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date, or
when an employee decides to accept an offer of benefits in exchange for termination of employment.
AMES Australia recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either terminating
the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of
withdrawal or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after balance sheet date are discounted to
present value.
Employee benefits on-costs
Provision for on-costs such as payroll tax, workers compensation and superannuation are recognised
separately from the provision of employee benefits.
Performance payments
Performance payments for AMES Australia Executive Officers are based on a percentage of the annual
salary package provided under the contract of employment. A liability is provided for under the term of
the contracts at reporting date and paid out in the next financial year.
Financial liabilities
Non-derivative financial liabilities (excluding financial guarantees) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognised as an ‘other economic flow’ in the estimated
comprehensive operating statement.
Financial guarantees
Payments that are contingent under financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a liability at the
time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured at fair value, and if there is a material
increase in the likelihood that the guarantee may have to be exercised, then it is measured at the higher
of the amount determined in accordance with AASB 137 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation, where appropriate.
The fair value of financial guarantee contracts has been assessed using the probability weighted
discounted cash flow approach. The probability has been based on:
• the likelihood of the guaranteed party defaulting in a year’s period;
• the proportion of the exposure that is not expected to be recovered due to the guaranteed party
defaulting; and
• the maximum loss exposed if the guaranteed party were to default

1.15

Commitments

Commitments for future expenditure include operating and capital commitments arising from contracts.
These commitments are disclosed by way of note at their nominal value and inclusive of the GST
payable. In addition, where it is considered appropriate and provides additional relevant information to
users, the net present values of significant individual projects are stated. These future expenditures
cease to be disclose as commitments once the related liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont.)
1.16

1.17

1.18

Contingent assets and liabilities

Contingent assets and liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet, but are disclosed by way of a
note (refer Note 17) and, if quantifiable, are measured at nominal value. Contingent assets and liabilities
are presented inclusive of the GST receivable or payable respectively.

Equity

Contributed capital
Funding that is in the nature of contributions by the Victorian State government are treated as
contributed capital when designated in accordance with UIG Interpretation 1038 Contribution by Owners
Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities . Commonwealth capital funds are not affected and are
treated as income.

Foreign currency translations

Functional and presentation currency
The functional currency of AMES Australia is the Australian dollar, which has also been identified as the
presentation currency of AMES Australia.
Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are translated at the year end exchange
rate. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost continue to be carried at the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value are reported at the exchange rate at
the date when fair values were determined.
Foreign currency translation differences are recognised in other economic flows and accumulated in a
separate component of equity, in the period in which they arise.

1.19

Materiality

In accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors , when an Australian Accounting Standard specifically applies to a transaction,
other event or condition, the accounting policies applied to that item shall be determined by applying the
Standard, unless the effect of applying them is immaterial.
Accounting policies will be considered material if their omission or misstatement could, either individually
or collectively, influence the economic decisions that users make on the basis of the financial
statements. Materiality depends on the size and nature of the omission or misstatement judged in the
surrounding circumstances.

1.20

1.21

1.22

Rounding of amounts

Amounts in the financial report have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars, unless otherwise
stated.

Comparative information

When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to
changes in presentation for the current financial year. AMES Australia changed its reporting period from
a calendar year basis to a financial year basis in the previous reporting period ending 30 June 2015.
This was for an 18 month period. The current financial year is a 12 month period ending 30 June 2016.

Changes in accounting policy

The following new and revised accounting standards have been adopted in the current financial year.
• AASB 2015-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Fair Value Disclosures of Not-forProfit Public Sector Entities
The Minister for Finance has approved the early adoption of AASB 2015-7. This enables Victorian notfor-profit sector entities to benefit from some limited scope exemptions in relation to the fair value
disclosure for the 2015 reporting period. AMES Australia has chosen to early adopt AASB 2015-7 in the
reporting period ending 30 June 2015. For fair value measurements that have been categorised within
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, AMES Australia is no longer required to provide quantitative
information about the 'significant unobservable inputs' used in determining the fair value measurement.

20

AMES AUSTRALIA

(formerly Adult Multicultural Education Services)

Notes to the financial statements (cont.)
30 June 2016

1.23

1.24

Changes in last reporting period

In accordance to the Notice of Determination made under section 6(2) of the Financial Management Act 1994, the change in annual
reporting from a calendar year basis to a fiscal financial year (July - June) basis was approved by the Minister for Finance, Robert Clarke
MP on 3 October 2014. This determination extended the previous reporting period for AMES Australia by six months to an eighteen month
period ending 30 June 2015. Amounts represented in the financial statements are not entirely comparable.

New accounting standards and interpretations

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2016 reporting period.
As at 30 June 2016, the following standards and interpretations which are applicable to AMES Australia had been issued but were not
mandatory for financial year ending 30 June 2016. AMES Australia has not, and does not intend to, adopt these standards early.
Application date of
standard

Impact on financial
statements

Standard/Interpretation

Summary

AASB 9 Financial Instruments

The key changes introduced by AASB 9 include the 1 January 2018
simplified requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, a new hedging
accounting model and a revised impairment loss
model to recognise impairment losses earlier, as
opposed to the current approach that recognises
impairment only when incurred.

Amendments unlikely to
have any financial impact
on AMES Australia.

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

The core principle of AASB 15 requires an entity to
recognise revenue when the entity satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised
good or service to a customer. Note that amending
standard AASB 2015-8 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards – Effective Date of AASB 15
has deferred the effective date of AASB 15 to
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018, instead of 1 January 2017.

1 January 2018

Amendments unlikely to
have any financial impact
on AMES Australia.

AASB 16 Leases

The key changes introduced by AASB 16 include
the recognition of most operating leases (which are
currently not recognised) on balance sheet.

1 January 2019

Amendments may a
financial impact on AMES
Australia.

AASB 2010-7 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards
arising from AASB 9 (December
2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102,
108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128,
131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 &
1038 and Interpretations 2, 5, 10,
12, 19 & 127]

The requirements for classifying and measuring
1 January 2018
financial liabilities were added to AASB 9. The
existing requirements for the classification of
financial liabilities and the ability to use the fair value
option have been retained. However, where the fair
value option is used for financial liabilities the
change in fair value is accounted for as follows:
• the change in fair value attributable to changes in
credit risk is presented in other comprehensive
income (OCI); and
• other fair value changes are presented in profit or
loss. If this approach creates or enlarges an
accounting mismatch in the profit or loss, the effect
of the changes in credit risk are also presented in
profit or loss.

Amendments unlikely to
have any financial impact
on AMES Australia.

AASB 2014-1 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards
[Part E Financial Instruments]

Amends various AASs to reflect the AASB’s
1 January 2018
decision to defer the mandatory application date of
AASB 9 to annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018; as a consequence of Chapter
6; and to amend reduced disclosure requirements.

Amendments unlikely to
have any financial impact
on AMES.
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Application date of
standard

Impact on financial
statements

Standard/Interpretation

Summary

AASB 2014-4 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards –
Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation
[AASB 116 & AASB 138]

AASB 2014-4 amends AASB 116 and AASB 138 to: 1 January 2016
• establish the principle for the basis of depreciation
and amortisation as being the expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic benefits of an
asset;
• clarify that the use of revenue based methods to
calculate the depreciation of an asset is not
appropriate because revenue generated by an
activity that includes the use of an asset generally
reflects factors other than the consumption of the
economic benefits embodied in the asset; and
• clarify that revenue is generally presumed to be an
inappropriate basis for measuring the consumption
of the economic benefits embodied in an intangible
asset. This presumption, however, can be rebutted
in certain limited circumstances.

AASB 2014-5 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards
arising from AASB 15

Amends the measurement of trade receivables and 1 January 2017,
Amendments unlikely to
the recognition of dividends.
except amendments have any financial impact
to AASB 9
on AMES Australia.
(December 2009)
and AASB 9
(December 2010)
apply 1 January
2018.

AASB 2014-7 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards
arising from AASB 9

Amends various AASs to incorporate the
consequential amendments arising from the
issuance of AASB 9.

1 January 2018

Amendments unlikely to
have any financial impact
on AMES.

AASB 2014-9 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards –
Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements [AASB 1, 127 & 128]

Amends AASB 127 to allow entities to use the equity 1 January 2016
method of accounting for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their
separate financial statements.
In particular, dividends from a subsidiary, a joint
venture or an associate are recognised in profit or
loss in the separate financial statements of an entity
when the entity’s right to receive the dividend is
established. The dividend is recognised in profit or
loss unless the entity elects to use the equity
method, in which case the dividend is recognised as
a reduction from the carrying amount of the
investment.

Amendments unlikely to
have any financial impact
on AMES Australia.

AASB 2014-10 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards –
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture [AASB
10 & AASB 128]

Amends AASB 10 and AASB 128 to ensure
1 January 2016
consistent treatment in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require
that:
• a full gain or loss to be recognised when a
transaction involves a business (whether it is
housed in a subsidiary or not); and
• a partial gain or loss to be recognised when a
transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
business, even if these assets are housed in a
subsidiary.

Amendments unlikely to
have any financial impact
on AMES Australia.

AASB 2015-1 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards –
Annual Improvements to Australian
Accounting Standards 2012–2014
Cycle
[AASB 1, AASB 2, AASB 3, AASB
5, AASB 7, AASB 11, AASB 110,
AASB 119, AASB 121, AASB 133,
AASB 134, AASB 137 & AASB 140]

Amends the methods of disposal in AASB 5 Non
1 January 2016
current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations.
Amends AASB 7 Financial Instruments by including
further guidance on servicing contracts.

Amendments unlikely to
have any financial impact
on AMES.

AASB 2015-6 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards –
Extending Related Party
Disclosures to Not for Profit Public
Sector Entities
[AASB 10, AASB 124 & AASB
1049]

AASB 2015 6 extends the scope of AASB 124
Related Party Disclosures to not-for-profit public
sector entities. Guidance has been included to
assist the application of the Standard by not-forprofit public sector entities.

The amending standard
will result in extended
disclosures on the entity's
key management
personnel (KMP), and the
related party transactions.

1 January 2016

Amendments unlikely to
have any financial impact
on AMES Australia as the
revenue-based method is
not used for depreciation
and amortisation.
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In addition to the new standards above, the AASB has issued a list of amending standards that are not effective for the reporting period (as
listed below). In general, these amending standards include editorial and references changes that are expected to have insignificant
impacts on public sector reporting.
• AASB 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
• AASB 1056 Superannuation Entities
• AASB 1057 Application of Australian Accounting Standards
• AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [Part D – Consequential Amendments arising from AASB 14 Regulatory
Deferral Accounts only]
• AASB 2014-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations [AASB 1 &
AASB 11]
• AASB 2014-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Agriculture: Bearer Plants [AASB 101, AASB 116, AASB 117, AASB
123, AASB 136, AASB 140 & AASB 141]
• AASB 2015-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception [AASB 10,
AASB 12, AASB 128]
• AASB 2015-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Scope and Application Paragraphs [AASB 8, AASB 133 & AASB 1057]
• AASB 2015-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Effective Date of Amendments to AASB 10 and AASB 128
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Note

2016

18 months
2015

$000

$000

3,856

5,503

3,856

5,503

458

2,281

159,091
4,566
163,657

256,839
3,052
259,891

334

687

164,449

262,859

186
509

390
1,063

695

1,453

0
529
2
1,504

5
709
0
989

2,035

1,703

2 Income from transactions

(a) Grants and other Government contributions
(i) Government contributions - operating
Commonwealth/state government specific funded programs
Total government contributions
(b) Sales of goods and services
Student fees and charges
Rendering of services
Fee for service - Government
Fee for service - Other
Total rendering of services
Other non-course fees and charges
Sale of goods
Total revenue from sale of goods and services
(c) Interest
Interest on bank deposits
Interest on deposits-at call with Treasury Corporation Victoria (TCV)
Total interest income
(d) Other income
Dividend revenue
Rental revenue
Royalty fees
Other
Total other income
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2016
$000

18 months
2015
$000

66,578
5,169
2,968
714
240
243
75,912

81,690
7,359
4,226
869
1,343
216
95,703

370
531
210
1,111

447
545
262
1,254

484
1,595

542
1,796

1,441
1,987
2,694
812
770
54,897
62,601

1,799
1,759
3,852
1,466
1,593
86,306
96,775

589
950
31
428
5,706
5,656
13,360

759
1,292
31
374
1,398
648
4,502

Operating lease expenses
Minimum lease payments
Venue hire and equipment rentals
Sub-total operating lease expenses

6,548
119
6,667

11,599
134
11,733

Other expenses
Job network clients related expenses
Asylum seeker clients related expenses
Cost of goods sold /distributed (ancillary trading)
Sub-total other expenses

2,840
4,019
89
6,948

4,644
46,595
211
51,450

26,975

67,685

Note

3 Expenses from transactions

(a) Employee expenses
Salaries, wages, overtime, allowances, annual and long service leave
Superannuation
Payroll tax
Worker's compensation
Termination benefits
Other salary related costs
Total employee expenses

21

(b) Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation of non-current assets
Buildings
Plant and equipment
Motor vehicles
Total depreciation

10

Amortisation of non-current physical assets
Leasehold improvements
Total depreciation and amortisation
(c) Supplies and services
Purchases of supplies and consumables
Communication expenses
Contract and other services
Building repairs and maintenance
Minor equipment
Fees and charges
Total supplies and services
(d) Other operating expenses
General expenses
Marketing and promotional expenses
Occupancy expenses
Audit fees and services
Staff development
Travel and motor vehicle expenses
Other expenses
Sub-total general expenses

20

Total other operating expenses
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Note

2016
$000

18 months
2015
$000

116
(181)

140
(246)

(65)

(106)

(359)

(539)

(424)

(645)

2016
$000

2015
$000

9,824

11,020

9,824

11,020

24,000

26,000

24,000

26,000

4 Other economic flows included in net result
(a) Net gain / (loss) on non-financial assets
Proceeds from sale of physical assets
Less written down value
Net gains / (losses) on non-financial assets
(b) Other gains / (losses) from other economic flows
Net gain / (loss) arising from revaluation of long service leave liability
Total from other economic flows

5 Cash and deposits

1.11, 24

Cash at bank and on hand

Total cash and deposits

6 Investments and other financial assets

Term Deposits¹:
Australian dollar term deposits > three months

Total investments and other financial assets

Notes:
¹ Term deposits under ‘investments and other financial assets’ class include only term deposits with maturity greater than 90 days.

7 Receivables

1.11, 24

Current receivables
Contractual
Trade receivables
Provision for doubtful debts
Revenue receivable
Other receivables
Sub-total

6,297
(2)
14,673
74
21,042

7,046
(2)
13,629
107
20,780

70

-

21,112

20,780

2
-

2
-

2

2

86

81

86

81

Current other non-financial assets
Prepayments

781

591

Total current other non-financial assets

781

591

Statutory
GST Receivable
Total current receivables
(a) Movement in the provision for doubtful contractual receivables
Balance at beginning of the year
Reversal of unused provision recognised in the net result
Increase in provision recognised in the net result
Reversal of provision for receivables written off during the year as uncollectible
Balance at the end of the year
(b) Ageing analysis of contractual receivables
Please refer to Note 24(ii) for the ageing analysis of contractual receivables.
(c) Nature and extent of risk arising from contractual receivables
Please refer to Note 24(ii) for the nature and extent of credit risk arising from contractual receivables.

8 Inventories

1.13

Current
Publications held for sale
Total current inventories

9 Other non-financial assets
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Note

10 Property, plant and equipment

At 1 January 2014
Fair value
Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount

1.13
Land - at Fair
Value
$000

Buildings
$000

Leasehold
Improvements
$000

Plant &
Equipment,
Computer
Equipment
$000

Motor
Vehicles
$000

Total
$000

-

7,196
(298)
6,898

3,691
(1,702)
1,989

2,623
(1,427)
1,196

922
(375)
547

14,432
(3,802)
10,630

Period ended 30 June 2015
Opening net book amount
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation expense
Closing net book amount

-

6,898
0
0
(447)
6,451

1,989
937
(82)
(542)
2,302

1,196
406
(60)
(545)
997

547
253
(103)
(262)
435

10,630
1,596
(245)
(1,796)
10,185

At 30 June 2015
Fair value
Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount

-

7,196
(745)
6,451

4,155
(1,853)
2,302

2,449
(1,452)
997

886
(451)
435

14,686
(4,501)
10,185

Year ended 30 June 2016
Opening net book amount
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation expense¹
Closing net book amount

7,250
7,250

6,451
5,299
(370)
11,380

2,302
292
(122)
(484)
1,988

997
825
(1)
(531)
1,290

435
471
(59)
(210)
637

10,185
14,137
(182)
(1,595)
22,545

At 30 June 2016
Fair value
Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount

7,250
7,250

12,495
(1,115)
11,380

4,226
(2,238)
1,988

3,057
(1,767)
1,290

1,149
(512)
637

28,177
(5,632)
22,545

Note:
¹ The useful lives of assets as stated in Note 1.08 are used in the calculation of depreciation expense as shown in Note 3(b).
(a) Building valuation
Fair value assessments have been performed at 30 June 2016 for AMES Australia's buildings by applying the Valuer General Victoria (VGV) indexation factors
for the financial year 2015/2016. The assessment demonstrated that fair value was materially similar to carrying value, and therefore a managerial or full
revaluation of AMES Australia's buildings was not required. An independent valuation of AMES Australia's buildings was performed by URBIS VALUATIONS
Pty Ltd on behalf of Valuer General Victoria (VGV). The effective date of the valuation was 31 December 2012. The next formal valuation of buildings will be
required in 2017.
(b) Other assets valuation
In accordance with Victorian Government Financial Reporting Direction 103F ‘Non-Current Physical Assets’, AMES Australia measures plant, equipment,
motor vehicles, and leasehold improvement assets at fair value.
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(c) Fair Value measurement hierarchy
Details of AMES Australia's property, plant and equipment information about the fair value hierarchy based on recurring fair value measurement are as follows:
Carrying amount as at
30 June 2016
$000
Land
Buildings - Melbourne
- Noble Park
- Box Hill
Leasehold Improvements
Plant & Equipment
Motor Vehicles
Total assets at fair value

Level 1

Fair value hierarchy
Level 2

Quoted Prices
$000

7,250
6,021
131
5,228
1,988
1,290
637
22,545

Level 3

Observable Price Inputs
$000

Unobservable Inputs
$000

7,250
6,021
131
5,228
1,988
1,290
637
19,267

-

3,278

Classified in accordance with fair value hierarchy, see Note 1.02.
There were no transfers between levels during the year.
Carrying amount as at
30 June 2015
$000
Buildings - Melbourne
- Noble Park
Leasehold Improvements
Plant & Equipment
Motor Vehicles
Total assets at fair value

Level 1

Fair value hierarchy
Level 2

Quoted Prices
$000

6,301
150
2,302
997
435
10,185

Level 3

Observable Price Inputs
$000
6,301
150

2,302
997
435
6,886

-

(d) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
Leasehold
Improvements

As at 30 June 2016

Plant &
Equipment

Opening balance

2,302

997

Purchase / (Sales)

170

824

Depreciation

(484)

(531)

Closing balance

1,988

1,290

Leasehold
Improvements

As at 30 June 2015
Opening balance

Plant &
Equipment
1,989

1,196

855

346

Depreciation

(542)

(545)

Closing balance

2,302

997

Purchases / (Sales)

(e) Description of significant unobservable inputs to Level 3 valuations
Significant
unobservable
inputs

Valuation Technique

Leasehold Improvements
Plant & Equipment

Unobservable Inputs
$000

Depreciated cost
Depreciated replacement cost

Useful life
Useful life

28

3,299

AMES AUSTRALIA

(formerly Adult Multicultural Education Services)

Notes to the financial statements (cont.)
30 June 2016

2016
$000

18 months
2015
$000

17,334
1,549
18,883

16,156
1,080
17,236

364

693

19,247

17,929

Revenue in advance

3,965

888

Total other liabilities

3,965

888

3,927
2,123
121
6,171

3,439
813
135
4,387

462
4,311
4,773

437
4,607
5,044

150

-

11,094

9,431

1,408
1,408

1,303
1,303

Total provisions

12,502

10,734

Movements in Provisions
Carrying amount at start of year/period
Additional provisions recognised
Amounts used
Carrying amount at end of year/period

10,734
5,460
(3,692)
12,502

9,732
7,659
(6,657)
10,734

2,517
0
2,517

2,517
0
2,517

0

0

Note

11 Payables

1.14

Current
Contractual
Supplies and services
Accrued salaries, wages and superannuation
Sub-total

24(iii), 24(v)

Statutory
Taxes payable
Total current payables
(a) Maturity analysis of contractual payables
Please refer to Note 24(iii) for the maturity analysis of contractual payables.
(b) Nature and extent of risk arising from contractual payables
Please refer to Note 24(iii) for the nature and extent of risks arising from contractual payables.

12 Other liabilities

13 Provisions

1.14

Current provisions expected to be settled within 12 months
Employee benefits
Annual leave
Long service leave
Performance payments
Total current provisions expected to be settled within 12 months
Current provisions expected to be settled after 12 months
Employee benefits
Annual leave
Long service leave
Total current provisions expected to be settled after 12 months
Make good provision

Total current provisions
Non-current
Employee benefits
Long service leave
Total non-current provisions

14 Reserves

Asset Revaluation Reserve - Buildings
Balance at beginning of financial year/period
Revaluation increments / (decrements) on non-current assets
Balance at end of financial year/period

1.13

Net Changes in reserves
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2016
$000

18 months
2015
$000

9,824
9,824

11,020
11,020

-

-

190
210
400

177
223
400

3,528

8,914

1,595
65
1,660

1,796
106
1,902

(332)
(5)
(190)
4,395
1,618
150
5,636
10,824

(8,711)
(19)
580
(715)
1,002
(7,863)
2,953

2016
$000

2015
$000

46
46

936
936

(4)
42

(85)
851

3,003
2,148
5,151

5,083
4,965
10,048

(468)
4,683

(913)
9,135

253
253

258
258

GST reclaimable on the above
Net Commitments other expenditure commitments

(23)
230

(23)
235

Total commitments for expenditure (inclusive of GST)

5,450

11,242

Total commitments for expenditure (exclusive of GST)

4,955

10,220

Note

15 Cash flow information

(a) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
Total cash and deposits disclosed in the balance sheet
Balance as per cash flow statement

(b) Non-cash financing and investing activities
There was no plant and equipment acquired by means of finance lease as at the reporting date.
(c) Credit card facility with bank (unsecured)
Amount utilised
Balance available
Total credit card facility with bank
(d) Reconciliation of net result for the year/period
Net result for the year
Non-cash movements:
Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets
Net (gain) / loss on sale of non-current assets
Total non-cash flows in operating result

3(b), 10
4(a)

Movements in assets and liabilities
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables
Decrease / (increase) in inventories
Decrease / (increase) in other assets
Increase / (decrease) in payables
Increase / (decrease) in employee benefits
Increase/ (decrease) in provisions
Total movement in assets and liabilities
Net cash flows from / (used in) operating activities

16 Commitments for expenditure

(a) Capital expenditure commitments payable
Capital expenditure contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities is as follows:
Property, Plant and Equipment
Payable:
Within one year
Total Property, Plant and Equipment
GST reclaimable on the above
Net Commitments Property, Plant and Equipment
(b) Lease commitments
(i) Operating leases
Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non-cancellable operating leases are payable as
as follows:
Within one year
Later than one year but not later than five years
Total minimum lease payments in relation to non-cancellable operating leases
GST reclaimable on the above
Net Commitments Non-cancellable Operating Leases
(c) Other expenditure commitments
Operating expenses commitments for goods or services in existence at the reporting date but not
recognised as liabilities, payable:
Within one year
Total other expenditure commitments
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17 Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

As at the reporting date there were no contingent assets (nil in 2015). However, there is a contingent liability to indemnify Westpac Banking
Corporation for the $1.0 million bank guarantee issued on 11th December 2014 in favour of Commonwealth of Australia as represented by the
Department of Immigration and Border Protection as financial security in the delivery of refugee settlement services in Nauru.

18 Economic dependency

AMES Australia derives a significant amount of its revenue from the following sources which are subject to tender:
- Department of Immigration and Border Protection (DIBP)
- Department of Social Services (DSS)
- Department of Education and Training (Commonwealth Government)
- Department of Employment

19 Subsequent events
No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the reporting year which significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of
AMES Australia, the result of those operations, or the state of affairs of AMES Australia in future financial years.

20 Remuneration of auditors

Remuneration of Victorian Auditor General's Office for:
Audit of the financial statements
Total remuneration of auditors

2016
$000

18 months
2015
$000

31

31

31

31

21 Superannuation
Employees of AMES Australia are entitled to receive superannuation benefits and AMES Australia contributes to both defined benefit and defined
contribution plans.
AMES Australia does not recognise any defined benefit liability in respect of the plans(s) because the organisation has no legal or constructive
obligation to pay future benefits relating to its employees; its only obligation is to pay superannuation contributions as they fall due. The Department
of Treasury and Finance recognises and discloses the State's defined benefit liabilities in its financial statements.
However, superannuation contributions paid or payable for the reporting period are included as part of employee benefits in the Comprehensive
Operating Statement AMES Australia.
The name and details of the major employee superannuation funds and contributions made by AMES Australia are as follows:

Paid contribution for the year/period
Defined benefit plans:
State Superannuation Fund- revised and new
Defined contribution plans:
VicSuper
Other
Total paid contribution for the year/period
Contribution outstanding at year/period end (paid the following month)
Total superannuation expense recognised in the comprehensive operating statement
The bases for contributions are determined by the various schemes.

31

2016
$000

18 months
2015
$000

245

482

2,799
1,615
4,659

4,482
1,946
6,910

510

449

5,169

7,359
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22 Responsible persons and executive officers

In accordance with the Ministerial Directions issued by the Minister for Finance under the Financial Management Act 1994, the following disclosures
are made regarding responsible persons and executive officers for the reporting year.

(i) Minister
The relevant Minister is The Hon Steve Herbert MP, Minister for Training and Skills. Remuneration of the Minister is reported in the financial
report of the Department of Premier and Cabinet. For information regarding related party transactions of ministers, the register of members'
interests is publicly available from: www.parliament.vic.gov.au/publications/register of interests.
(ii) Chief Executive Officer
Catherine Scarth appointed September 2011.
Remuneration received or receivable by the chief executive officer in connection with the management of AMES Australia during the reporting
year was in the range: $320,000 - $330,000 (2015: $360,001 - $370,000).
(iii) Members of the Board
G Sherry, OAM (Chair of the Board; Chair of Appointments, Remuneration & Governance Committee)
M Boston (Deputy Chair of the Board; Chair of the Finance Committee 1 July 2015 - 26 January 2016; Chair of the Audit & Risk
Management Committee from 9 May 2016)
S Alford (Member appointed 30 October 2015; Chair of the Finance Committee from 27 January 2016)
M Foster (Member and Chair of the Audit & Risk Management Committee 1 July 2015 - 8 May 2016)
K Laster (Member)
V Drakulic (Member appointed 30 October 2015)
I Nwokolo (Member appointed 30 October 2015)
J Pride (Member appointed 30 October 2015)
M C Watts (Member appointed 30 October 2015)
Remuneration of the board members in connection with the management of AMES Australia are disclosed below:

Income range
The number of Board members whose remuneration from AMES Australia was within the
specified bands are as follows:
$0
Less than $10,000
$10,001 - $20,000
$20,001 - $30,000
Total number of Board Members
Total remuneration of Board Members ($'000)

2016
No.

18 months
2015
No.

7
2
9

2
4
2
1
9

69

70

(iv) Executive Officers
The following persons also had authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of AMES Australia during the
reporting period:
Belinda McLennan (Chief Operating Officer)
Deva Corea (Chief Financial Officer)
Peter Thomas (Executive General Manager Corporate Governance and Board Secretary)
Mabel Estrella (Chief Digital Officer appointed 27 June 2016)
Adam Baxter (General Manager Stakeholder Relations)
Ramesh Kumar (General Manager Settlement and Asylum Seeker Program until 30 September 2015; General Manager Social
Participation & International Humanitarian Affairs from 1 October 2015)
Peter Harrison (Acting General Manager Employment until 15 November 2015; General Manager South East (Employment)
appointed16 November 2015)
Joy Nunn (General Manager Central West (Education) appointed 18 November 2015)
Mirta Gonzalez (General Manager North (Settlement) appointed 30 November 2015)
Catharine O'Grady (General Manager Operations Support appointed 1 December 2015)
Robin Allen (General Manager Human Resources resigned 16 October 2015)
Anne Cosentino (Acting General Manager Education until 17 November 2015)
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22 Responsible persons and executives officers (cont.)
Remuneration of Executive Officers
The number of executive officers, including the chief executive officer, and their total remuneration during the reporting period are shown in the first two
columns in the table below in their relevant income bands.
The base remuneration of executive officers is shown in the third and fourth columns. Base remuneration is exclusive of bonus payments, long service
leave payments, redundancy payments and retirement benefits.
The total annualised employee equivalent provides a measure of full time equivalent executive officers over the reporting period.
Total remuneration

Base remuneration

2016
No.

18 months
2015
No.

2016
No.

18 months
2015
No.

$100,001 - $110,000
$110,001 - $120,000
$120,001 - $130,000
$130,001 - $140,000
$140,001 - $150,000
$150,001 - $160,000
$160,001 - $170,000
$170,001 - $180,000
$190,001 - $200,000
$200,001 - $210,000
$210,001 - $220,000
$220,001 - $230,000
$230,001 - $240,000
$240,001 - $250,000
$250,001 - $260,000
$260,001 - $270,000
$270,001 - $280,000
$280,001 - $290,000
$290,001 - $300,000
$310,001 - $320,000
$320,001 - $330,000
$360,001 - $370,000
$370,001 - $380,000

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
-

1
2
1
1
2
1

1
1
1
2
2
1
-

1
3
1
2
1
-

Total number of Executive Officers

8

8

8

8

Income range
The number of executive officers whose total remuneration from AMES Australia
exceeded $100,000, separately identifying base remuneration and
total remuneration, disclosed within the income band of $10,000 in a table format:

Total annualised employee equivalent (AEE)
Total amount of remunerations ($'000)

8

8

8

8

1,470

2,063

1,355

1,973

Other transactions
Other related transactions and loan requiring disclosure under the Directions of the Minister for Finance have been considered and there are no matters to
report.

23 Related parties

Transactions with related parties
During the year ended 30 June 2016, AMES Australia received $4,743,496 from the Department of Education and Training (Victorian Government), an
organisation connected to AMES Australia's responsible person - S. Alford (Board member appointed 30 October 2015).
Outstanding balances
There are no outstanding balances at the reporting date in relation to transactions with related parties.
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24 Financial instruments
(i) Financial risk management objectives and policies

AMES Australia's financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with Treasury Corporation of Victoria, receivables (excluding statutory
receivables), and payables (excluding statutory payables).
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis
on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument is disclosed in
Note 1 of the financial statements.
The main risks AMES Australia is exposed to through its financial instruments are market risk (including interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk.
The organisation's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the financial performance of AMES Australia by adhering to principles on interest rate risk, credit risk and the investment of excess
liquidity. Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed by management on a continuous basis. AMES Australia does not enter into or
trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes. As a part of this risk management strategy, AMES
Australia holds over 61.6% (2015:64.1%) of its financial assets in cash and term deposits. AMES Australia uses different methods to measure
different types of risk to which it is exposed. These methods include sensitivity analysis in the case of interest rate and other price risks and ageing
analysis for credit risk.
AMES Australia's corporate finance provides services to its business units, co-ordinates access to domestic and international financial markets,
monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations through internal risk reports which analyses exposures by degree and
magnitude of risks. These risks include market (including fair value interest rate risk) credit risk and liquidity risk.
The carrying amount of AMES Australia's contractual financial assets and financial liabilities by category are disclosed below:
Carrying amount of financial instruments by category:
Financial Assets
Cash and Deposits
Investment and other financial assets - Term deposits
Receivables (a)
Financial liabilities
Payables (a)

30 June 2016 30 June 2015
Note
5
6
7

11

$000

$000

Category
Cash and deposits
Investments and other financial assets
Receivables

9,824
24,000
21,042

11,020
26,000
20,780

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

18,883

17,236

Note:
(a) Receivables and payables disclosed here exclude statutory receivables and statutory payables.

(ii) Credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit risk, excluding the value of any collateral or other security, at balance date to recognised financial assets, is the
carrying amount, net of any provisions for impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial statements.
There are no material amounts of collateral held as security at 30 June 2016.
Credit risk which arises from exposures to customers as well as through deposits with financial institutions is monitored and reviewed regularly by
the Finance Committee.
Management monitors credit risk by actively assessing the rating quality and liquidity of counter parties:
• only Westpac Banking Corp. (current account) and Treasury Corporation of Victoria are utilised;
• all potential customers are rated for credit worthiness taking into account their size, market position and financial standing; and
• customers that do not meet the strict credit policies may only purchase in cash or using recognised credit cards
There has been no significant change in the organisation's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing credit risk or the
methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.
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24 Financial instruments (cont.)
Credit quality of contractual financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired¹

Financial
Institutions
(AA- rating)
$000
9,824

30 June 2016
Cash and deposits
Receivables
Investments and other financial assets - Term Deposits

Government
Agencies
(AAA rating)
$000
24,000

Total contractual financial assets 2016

9,824

30 June 2015
Cash and deposits
Receivables
Investments and other financial assets - Term Deposits

24,000

11,020
26,000

Total contractual financial assets 2015

11,020

26,000

Other
Counterparty (AAA
rating)
$000

Total
$000
9,824
21,042
24,000

21,042
21,042

54,866

20,780

11,020
20,780
26,000

20,780

57,800

Note:
¹ The total amounts disclosed here exclude statutory amounts (e.g. amounts owing to/from Victorian Government, GST input tax credit
recoverable and taxes payable).
Ageing analysis of financial assets
There are no financial assets that have had their terms renegotiated so as to prevent them from being past due or impaired, and they are stated
at the carrying amounts as indicated. The following table discloses the ageing analysis for AMES Australia's financial assets.

Carrying
Amount
30 June 2016 Financial Assets
Receivables¹
Trade receivables
Revenue receivables
Other receivables
Total 2016 financial assets

$000

Total 2015 financial assets

Past due but not impaired
Less than 1
month

1-3 months

3 months - 1
year

1-5 years

$000

$000

$000

$000

6,295
14,673
74

6,256
14,673
35

31

8

21,042

20,964

31

8

Carrying
Amount
30 June 2015 Financial Assets
Receivables¹
Trade receivables
Revenue receivables
Other receivables

Not past
due and
not
impaired
$000

$000

Not past
due and
not
impaired
$000

$000

39

-

-

39

-

-

Past due but not impaired
Less than 1
month

1-3 months

$000

$000

7,044
13,629
107

6,988
13,629
65

56

20,780

20,682

56

-

Impaired
financial
assets

3 months - 1
year
$000

1-5 years

Impaired
financial
assets

$000

$000

42

-

-

42

-

-

Note:
¹ Receivables and payables disclosed here exclude statutory receivables and statutory payables (e.g. amounts owing to/from Victorian
Government, GST input tax credit recoverable and taxes payable).
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24 Financial instruments (cont.)
(iii) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that AMES Australia would be unable to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due.
The responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors of AMES Australia, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management of the short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity requirements. AMES Australia manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
There has been no significant change in the organisation's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing liquidity risk or the
methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.
Maturity analysis of financial liabilities
The carrying amount detailed in the following table of contractual financial liabilities recorded in the financial statements represents AMES
Australia's maximum exposure to liquidity risk.
The following table discloses the contractual maturity analysis for AMES Australia's financial liabilities.

30 June 2016 Financial Liabilities
Payables¹
Trade and other payables
Total 2016 financial liabilities

30 June 2015 Financial Liabilities
Payables¹
Trade and other payables
Total 2015 financial liabilities

Carrying
Amount

Nominal
Amount

$000

$000

18,883
18,883

Less than 1
month

1-3 months

3 months - 1
year

1-5 years

5+ years

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

18,883
18,883

Carrying
Amount

Nominal
Amount

$000

$000

17,236
17,236

Maturity dates

18,058
18,058

825
825

-

-

-

-

-

Maturity dates
Less than 1
month
$000

17,236
17,236

17,185
17,185

1-3 months

3 months - 1
year

1-5 years

5+ years

$000

$000

$000

$000

51
51

-

-

-

-

-

Note:
¹ Receivables and payables disclosed here exclude statutory receivables and statutory payables (e.g. amounts owing to/from Victorian
Government, GST input tax credit recoverable and taxes payable).

(iv) Market risk
AMES Australia in its daily operations is exposed to a number of market risks. Market risks relate to the risk that market rates and prices will
change and that this will have an adverse effect on the operating result and /or net worth of AMES Australia.
The Board ensures that all market risk exposure is consistent with AMES Australia's business strategy and within the risk tolerance of AMES
Australia. Regular risk reports are presented to the Board.
There has been no significant change in the organisation's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing market risk or the
methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk arises from the potential for a change in interest rates to change the expected net interest earnings in the current reporting
period and in future years, or cause a fluctuation in the fair value of the financial instruments.
The objective is to manage the interest rate risk to achieve stable and sustainable net interest earnings in the long term. This is managed
predominately through a mixture of short term and longer term investments. Management monitors movement in interest rates on a monthly
basis.
There has been no significant change in the organisation's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing interest rate risk or
the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.
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24 Financial instruments (cont.)
The organisation's exposure to interest rate risks and the effective interest rates of financial assets and financial liabilities are set out in the
financial instrument composition and maturity analysis table below:
Financial instrument composition and interest rate exposure

30 June 2016

Total
Carrying
Amount per
Balance
Sheet
$000

Floating
Interest rate
$000

2.02%

9,824

9,783

2.38%

24,000

Weighted
average
effective
rate
%

Financial assets
Cash and deposits
Cash at bank and on hand
Investments and other financial assets
Term Deposits
Contractual receivables
Trade receivables
Revenue receivables
Other receivables¹
Total financial assets

Interest rate exposure
Fixed
Interest rate
$000

Non-Interest
Bearing
$000

41
24,000

6,295
14,673
74
54,866

9,783

24,000

6,295
14,673
74
21,083

18,883
18,883

-

-

18,883
18,883

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Total financial liabilities

30 June 2015

Total
Carrying
Amount per
Balance
Sheet
$000

Floating
Interest rate
$000

2.26%

11,020

10,993

2.60%

26,000

Weighted
average
effective
rate
%

Financial assets
Cash and deposits
Cash at bank and on hand
Investments and other financial assets
Term Deposits
Contractual receivables
Trade receivables
Revenue receivables
Other receivables¹
Total financial assets
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Total financial liabilities

Fixed
Interest rate
$000

27
26,000

7,044
13,629
107
57,800

10,993

26,000

7,044
13,629
107
20,807

17,236
17,236

-

-

17,236
17,236

Note : ¹ Other receivables does not include statutory receivables.
Equity price risk
As at 30 June 2016, AMES Australia does not hold any other financial investments that are subject to changes in market prices.

37

Non-Interest
Bearing
$000

AMES AUSTRALIA

(formerly Adult Multicultural Education Services)

Notes to the financial statements (cont.)
30 June 2016

24 Financial instruments (cont.)
Sensitivity analysis and assumptions

AMES Australia's sensitivity to market risk is determined based on the observed range of actual historical data for the preceding five year period,
with all variables other than the primary risk variable held constant. The following movements are 'reasonably possible' over the next 12 months:
• a movement of 100 basis points up and down (100 basis points up and down) in market interest rates (AUD);
The table below shows the impact on AMES Australia's net result and equity for each category of financial instrument held by the organisation at
the end of the reporting period, if the movements were to occur:

30 June 2016
Contractual Financial Assets
Cash and deposits
Other financial assets
Total increase/(decrease) in financial assets

Carrying
amount
$000
9,824
24,000

Total increase/(decrease)

30 June 2015

Carrying
amount
$000

Interest rate risk
-1%
+1%
(100 basis points)
(100 basis points)
Result
Equity
Result
Equity
$000
$000
$000
$000
(98)
(240)
(338)

(98)
(240)
(338)

98
240
338

98
240
338

(338)

(338)

338

338

Interest rate risk
-1%
+1%
(100 basis points)
(100 basis points)
Result
Equity
Result
Equity
$000
$000
$000
$000

Contractual Financial Assets
Cash and deposits
Other financial assets
Total increase/(decrease) in financial assets

11,020
26,000

Total increase/(decrease)

(110)
(260)
(370)

(110)
(260)
(370)

110
260
370

110
260
370

(370)

(370)

370

370

(v) Funding risk
Funding risk is the risk of over reliance on a particular funding source to the extent that a change in that funding source could impact on the
operating result for the current year and future years.
AMES Australia manages funding risk by continuing to ensure that it is well positioned to successfully tender for and deliver government
contracts. In addition AMES Australia continuously looks for opportunities to diversify and increase funding from other domestic commercial
activities and funding sources within its core competencies.
There has been no significant change in the organisation's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing funding risk or the
methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

(vi) Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for disclosure purposes.
Fair values of financial instrument asset and liabilities are determined using the fair value hierarchy that categorises the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value into three levels based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.
• Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
AMES Australia can access at the measurement date.
• Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
• Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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24 Financial instruments (cont.)
AMES Australia considers that the carrying amount of trade receivables and payables is a reasonable approximation of their fair values due to the
short-term nature of trade receivables and payables.
Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their carrying value is assumed to approximate their fair value, and based on credit history
it is expected that the receivables that are neither past due nor impaired will be received when due.
For other assets and other liabilities the fair value approximates their carrying value. Financial assets where the carrying amount exceeds fair
values have not been written down as the organisation intends to hold these assets to maturity.
The carrying amounts and aggregate net fair values of financial assets and liabilities at balance date are:
30 June 2016

30 June 2015

Carrying
Amount Net Fair Value
$000
$000

Financial assets
Cash and deposits

Carrying
Amount
$000

Net Fair
Value
$000

9,824

9,824

11,020

11,020

Term Deposits
Receivables¹
Trade receivables
Other receivables

24,000

24,000

26,000

26,000

6,295
14,747

6,295
14,747

7,044
13,736

7,044
13,736

Total financial assets

54,866

54,866

57,800

57,800

Financial liabilities
Payables¹
Supplies and services
Other payables

17,334
1,549

17,334
1,549

16,156
1,080

16,156
1,080

Total financial liabilities

18,883

18,883

17,236

17,236

Investment and other financial assets

Note:
¹Receivables and payables disclosed here as financial instruments exclude statutory receivable and statutory payables.
AMES Australia did not have any financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value as at 30 June 2016.

25 Ex-gratia expenses

For the reporting year ended 30 June 2016, there were no ex-gratia payments made. (2015:Nil)
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